

ENACTED 2/24/09


Introduced by the Council President at the request of the Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission:
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ORDINANCE 2009-64-E
AN ORDINANCE REGARDING CHAPTER 307 (HISTORIC PRESERVATION), ORDINANCE CODE, DESIGNATING THE LAKE SHORE SUBDIVISION GATES LOCATED AT BLANDING BOULEVARD, BAYVIEW ROAD AND APPLETON STREET, IN COUNCIL DISTRICT 9 JACKSONVILLE, FLORIDA, AS A LANDMARK AND LANDMARK SITE; DIRECTING THE ZONING ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER THE LANDMARK AND LANDMARK SITE DESIGNATION ON THE ZONING ATLAS; DIRECTING THE COUNCIL SECRETARY TO NOTIFY EACH APPLICANT, THE PROPERTY OWNER AND THE PROPERTY APPRAISER OF THE LANDMARK AND LANDMARK SITE DESIGNATION AND TO CAUSE SAID DESIGNATION TO BE RECORDED IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF DUVAL COUNTY, FLORIDA; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.


WHEREAS, the Jacksonville City Council (the “Council”) promulgated Chapter 307 (Historic Preservation), Ordinance Code, to facilitate the designation of landmarks and landmark sites, where appropriate; and


WHEREAS, the structure to be designated consists of three (3) separate arched Spanish style subdivision gates along with a decorative fountain/planter as the base for a tall monument, which were constructed circa 1925 (hereinafter the “Subject Property”); the property owners within 350 feet of the boundaries of the Subject Property located at Blanding Boulevard, Bayview Road and Appleton Street in Council District 9 have been notified of the intent to designate the structure situated at the intersection of Bayview Road and Blanding Boulevard; and


WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements of Chapter 307 (Historic Preservation), Ordinance Code, the Council has considered the issue of designating the Subject Property as a landmark and landmark site, taking into consideration its importance and historical value, as more fully set forth in the Designation Application and Report of the Planning and Development Department, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit 1, and incorporated by reference herein (the “Report”); and


WHEREAS, public hearings have been held by the Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission, the Council and its committees regarding the issue of designating the Subject Property as a landmark and landmark site; and


WHEREAS, by enacting this ordinance, the Council is exercising its power and authority to protect the health, safety and welfare of the City of Jacksonville and finds that the Subject Property should be so designated; now, therefore


BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Jacksonville:


Section 1.

Designation of Landmark and Landmark Site.  Pursuant to Chapter 307 (Historic Preservation), Ordinance Code, the Council hereby designates the Subject Property as a landmark and landmark site.


Section 2.

Satisfaction of Requisite Criteria.  The Council hereby finds that the Subject Property satisfies at least three (3) of the requisite criteria set forth in Section 307.104(j), Ordinance Code, as more fully set forth in Exhibit 1.

Section 3.

Landmark and Landmark Site Designation on Zoning Atlas.  The Council hereby directs the Zoning Administrator to designate the Subject Property as a landmark and landmark site on the City’s Zoning Atlas.


Section 4.
Notice of Landmark and Landmark Site Designation.  The Council hereby directs the Chief of Legislative Services to notify each applicant, the property owner and the Property Appraiser of the designation of the Subject Property as a landmark and landmark site.


Section 5.

Recording of Landmark and Landmark Site Designation.  The Council hereby directs the Chief of Legislative Services to record this ordinance in the public records for Duval County, Florida.


Section 6.

Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective upon signature by the Mayor or upon becoming effective without the Mayor’s signature.

Form Approved:

     /s/ Cherry A. Shaw     
Office of General Counsel

Legislation Prepared By: Cherry A. Shaw
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of the
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

of the
City of Jacksonville
Regarding

PROPOSED DESIGNATION OF

Lake Shore Subdivision Gates
LM-08-02

DESIGNATION APPLICATION AND REPORT

Prepared in accordance with Chapter 307, City of Jacksonville Ordinance Code
December 10, 2008
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REPORT OF THE PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
APPLICATION FOR DESIGNATION
AS A CITY OF JACKSONVILLE LANDMARK

LM-08-02
Lake Shore Subdivision Gates
Bayview Road and Appleton Street

GENERAL LOCATION: The Gates and pocket park are bound by Blanding
Boulevard, Bayview Road and Appleton Street.

Prepared in accordance with the JACKSONVILLE ORDINANCE CODE, SECTION 307.104,
the Jacksonville Planning and Development Department hereby forwards to the Jacksonville
Historic Preservation Commission, its "Findings, Conclusions and Recommendations” on the

Landmark Site Designation, LM-08-02, sponsored by the Jacksonville Historic Preservation
Commission.

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS

(A) At the request of the Lake Shore Area Preservation Society, Inc, the Jacksonville Historic
Preservation Commission instructed the Planning and Development Department to begin
preparing a designation application for the Lake Shore Subdivision Gates located in the
public right of way at Bayview Road and Appleton Street. The designation includes three
stucco gateways and one fountain/planter.

.(B) Consistent with the JACKSONVILLE ORDINANCE CODE, SECTION 307.104(d), the
Planning and Development Department determined that the application for designation of
the property in the public right of way at Bayview Road and Appleton Street, the Lake
Shore Subdivision Gates, as a Landmark was complete. As required, the Planning and
Development Department had signs posted in front of the property being considered for
designation, as well as sent notices by U.S. Mail to each owner of real property within
three hundred and fifty (350) feet of the proposed site. Notice of the public hearing on
the designation of the property in the public right of way at Bayview Road and Appleton
Street, Lake Shore Subdivision Gates, as a Landmark was published in the Financial
News and Daily Report. Proof of publication will be attached to this report.

(C)  If designated, any activity affecting the property in the public right of way at Bayview
Road and Appleton Street, Lake Shore Subdivision Gates will require a Certificate of
Appropriateness (COA) from the Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission. Before
issuing the Certificate of Appropriateness, the Commission will review the proposed
activity for consistency with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation
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and Guidelines for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings. Routine repairs and maintenance,
alterations, and new construction not seen from the public right-of-way and other projects
consistent with the Secretary's Standards can be pre-approved by the Jacksonville
Planning and Development Department.

(D) At the close of the public hearing, the Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission
shall determine, whether based upon the evidence, Lake Shore Subdivision Gates, meets
the criteria for designation. In reviewing the application, the Planning and Development
Department has found the application to meet three of the seven criteria. The three
criteria include the following;

(1) Its value as a significant reminder of the cultural, historical, architectural, or
archaeological heritage of the City, state or nation.

Constructed in 1925 with a Mediterranean influenced design, the Lake Shore Subdivision
gates and fountain/planter at the intersection of Bayview Road and Blanding Boulevard
represent the most significant tangible reminder of the Lake Shore Subdivision. Developed
by Buck & Realty Company, Lake Shore was an extensive planned community along the
banks of the Cedar River that opened in 1925 during the Great Florida Land Boom of the
1920's. Platted and opened more towards the end of the boom, Lake Shore never achieved
any significant degree of development, resulting in it’s predominate growth occurring during
and after World War II. With the exception of a few Mediterranean influenced residences,
the gates stand in sharp visual contrast to the newer residential, commercial and institutional
architecture that surround it. Prominent and decorative gates, towers, and fountains were a
common tool used by developers during the boom to visually define a new subdivision in
what was usually cleared vacant land.

Much of the current physical design of Lake Shore resulted from a series of plats filed during the
Florida Land Boom of the 1920s. Although South Florida received the lion's share of
development, virtually every section of the state experienced significant growth during the boom.
Jacksonville became a primary departure point for visitors entering Florida. In early 1925 some
20-25 trains were arriving at the city each day. The Chamber of Commerce reported that over
150,000 automobiles had passed over the St. Johns River Bridge (Acosta Bridge) during the
spring of 1925. In July of that year alone, building permits totaled $1,177,383 in value, ranking
Jacksonvillle sixth in the state in new construction behind the major cities of the southern
peninsula.

Located on both sides of St. Johns Avenue (Blanding Boulevard), the Lake Shore development
included ten different plats filed between 1925 and 1928 by Buck & Buck Realty Company
founded in 1907 under Beale C. and James S. Buck. Section 2 platted in 1925 included the

1 1 Historic Property Associates, Inc. Historic Property Survey of the San Marco Area of Jacksonville. (St.
Augustine, Flonda: Histonic Property Associates, Inc., 1990),, pp. 18-19.

Michael Gannon, Editor, A New History of Florida. “Fortune and Misfortune: The Paradoxical Twenties”:by William
W. Rogers. (Gaineswville, Fl: University Press of Flonda, 1996), pp.290 — 298,
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distinctive boulevard that divides Bayview Road. At the termination of Bayview Road and St.
Johns Avenue (Blanding Boulevard) three separate arched Spanish style subdivision gates were
constructed, along with a decorative fountain/planter defined by a tall monument. Large and
decorative gates and entryways, usually with a Mediterranean influence, were the hallmark of
many subdivisions developed during the Florida Land Boom of the 1920s. A business district
was also planned for Lakeshore Estates, but never specified as far as location. However, most
early commercial development appears to cluster around the intersection of Blanding Boulevard
and San Juan Avenue.?

An important element of marketing new residential developments during the Florida Land Boom
was the use of extensive newspaper advertising that many times included full page ads promoting
and slightly exaggerating the many attributes of the new community. These advertisements were
supplemented by news articles that reinforced the same spirit of optimism and civic boosterism
but usually combined with a significant degree of hype. This description was also true in the
marketing of Lake Shore as reflected by news articles in 1925 that described the development as
being an “unqualified success”, and “represents the largest single improved (sic.) project and
development in Duval County”.3 These articles also highlighted Lake Shore’s scenic location
with one mile of waterfront along Cedar Creek and its rural tranquility while being only minutes
from downtown. Found in these articles were general descriptions of the infrastructural
improvements planned for the new community. For example representatives of Buck & Buck
Realty stated that when completed, Lake Shore will have an estimated twenty miles of paved
streets, and thirty miles of sidewalks. By January of 1925, new water lines had been laid, electric
lines were being strung, and streets were being paved.* Other popular methods of subdivision
hype during the 1920s included the construction of model homes, use of buses to transport
potential homebuyers to the site, as well as attracting public attention by offering a variety of
entertainment and special promotions. Buck & Buck Realty Company offered bus tours, as well
as a “grand opening” that included a drawing to win a pony.’

Representatives of Buck & Buck Realty Company emphasized the employment of professional
engineers, landscape architects, and nurserymen in planning the physical layout of the
development. The company also stressed the presence of strong deed restrictions popular during
a time when most communities lacked any form of a zoning code. Some of the new streets, as
exemplified by Bayview Road in Section Two, would by 120’ in width with a 30’ wide landscape
parkway. A ten foot grassy right-of-way with a row of palms will be located between the
sidewalk and the curb. In January of 1925, the newspaper reported that the foundation of a
“Spanish Style Bungalow” had been laid by local contractors, Albertus J. Cone and Henry A.
Halsema with another home in the design procf:ss.6 The two homes under censtruction were
probably the residences at 2241 Bayview Road (1924) and 2309 Bayview Road (1925). The

2 Lakeshore Section 1: Section 2; Section 3; Section 4; Section 5; Section 6; Section 7; Section 8; & Section A, Lake
Shore Estates (Bk 13, P. 61, 1925).

3 Flonida Times Union, February 8, 1925; March 15, 1925.

4 Ind, January 18, 1925.

5 Oral Interview — James Buck, August 11, 2008.

6 The 1925 city directory histed A.J. Cone as president of Wilson-Otwell-Cone, Inc, - lumber and Henry C. Halsema as
a contractor.
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developers also announced that twenty new homes of Spanish architecture were being planned
by the Suburban Homes Company. However, the articles went on to state that a variety of
architectural styles, in addition to the Spanish Revival; would be included in the design of new
homes.’

Although construction of homes appeared slow, the sale of lots was brisk according to Buck &
Buck Realty Company who reported $100,000 in sales over a thirty day period with many buyers
being from other states including Maine, Nebraska, New York, New Jersey, and Ohio. All the
lots in Section One completely sold out, with half of those in Section Two being reserved before
officially put on the market. A 1925 article noted that one of the principal owners in Lake Shore
was Augustus Anthony, President of the Peoples Bank who resided in an impressive manor style
house in Riverside.® By May of 1925, the lots in Section 4 were reportedly sold out with only
106 lots remaining in Section 5. Once all the lots in Section 5 were sold, Buck & Buck Realty
Company was §oing to take a “take a real estate rest” due to high sales and the need to complete
infrastructure. © With the financially disastrous bust of the boom during the mid-1920s, several
Jacksonville subdivisions of the era, such as Lake Shore, Venetia, and San Jose Estates, never
reached their full potential and for the most part remained undeveloped until new residential
construction became active during the 1940s and 50s.

6. It has distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style valuable for the study of a
period, method of construction, or use of indigenous materials.

Consistent with the popular revival styles that complemented Florida’s hyped fantasy image
during the boom, the Lake Shore Subdivision gates exemplifies the Spanish Eclectic or
Mediterranean Revival Style common between 1918 and 1939. The style was very popular
in Florida during the 1920's, and has come to be closely associated with the Great Florida
Land Boom of that period. The Mediterranean Revival Style was used in the design of
residences, commercial buildings, schools, and churches. A synthesis of both Italian and
Spanish motifs, the Mediterranean Revival Style was the dominant architectural theme for
most of Jacksonville’s boom era subdivisions. Elements of the style reflected in the gates
include the textured stucco finish over masonry, terra cotta barrel tile roof, decorative arched
entryway highlighted by a cast stone panel with the initials, LS.

The Lakeshore Gates represents one of the most elaborate examples of boom period
subdivision gates remaining in Jacksonville. The use of decorative subdivision gates, towers,
and fountains, usually reflecting a common design theme, became a popular way during the
Florida Land Boom to define and differentiate the numerous competing residential
developments mushrooming across the state during the 1920°s. Because the land boom was
of relatively short duration and ended so abruptly, subdivision gates in many cases became
the only physical manifestations of real estates dreams. Later becoming the victim of right-
of-way expansion as well as suffering from deterioration due to lack of maintenance, many of

7 January 18, 1925.
8 Ibid, March 15, 1925 Anthony resided at the Manor Inn, 1630 Copeland Street.
9 Florida Times Union, May 9, 1925, p. 21; May 10, 1925, p. 20; May 13, 1925, p. 3; May 20, 1925, p. 3
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Florida’s 1920 era subdivision gates, towers, and fountains have disappeared. Examples of
the few remaining 1920’s subdivision gates remaining in Jacksonville include San Jose
Estates, (San Jose Boulevard at North Christopher Point Road) Venetia (Ortega Boulevard),
Kelnepa (Kelnepa Drive at Old San Jose Boulevard), and Glynea off Atlantic Boulevard
between Pottsburg Creek and Silversmith Creek.

7. Its suitability for preservation.

In utilizing this criterion, it has been the practice of the Planning and Development
Department to evaluate proposed landmarks based on evidence of significant exterior
alterations that have negatively impacted character-defining features, as well as represent
alterations difficult, costly, or impossible to reverse. Further, the degree and nature of any
exterior deterioration, as well as the evidence of long term and potentially on-going neglect
are also a factor in evaluating potential landmarks for their suitability for preservation or
restoration. Although lacking consistent on-going maintenance until recently, as well as being
close to a busy intersection, the gates are in reasonably good condition.

Most of the deterioration evident was stucco damage and stress cracks, as well as damaged or
missing barrel tiles. The missing or damaged tiles on the gable tops of the faux towers have
allowed moisture penetration which has weakened mortar joints. Other original elements
such as the ten gas lamps have also been removed over the years. The single tall monument
on the parcel northwest of the gates was originally part of a fountain that flowed from the
central shaft into the triangular pool now used as a planter. Although located on public right-
of-way, the gates and surrounding grounds are currently maintained by local property owners,
under the direction of the Lake Shore Area Preservation Society. The two smaller arches that
flank both sides of Bayview Road appear to be in the best shape, along with the tall wall
associated with the fountain/planter at the intersection of Bayview Road, Appleton Street,
and Blanding Boulevard.

The more prominent gateway in the center of the wide boulevard separating the travel lanes
on both sides of Bayview Road has suffered the most deterioration. In particular the gable
caps of the two towers fronting the west side of Bayview Road appear to be more
deteriorated as evident by cracks, loose bricks, and loss of barrel tiles. Tiles that topped the
long arms or buttresses connecting the pair of towers to the shorter arch to the east are
damaged or missing. The society has recently initiated repairs to the gates to ensure their
continued preservation. Currently, the work has involved stucco repairs and repainting, with
further stabilization and the installation of barrel tiles planned in the near future.

RECOMMENDATION

Based on the findings of this report, the Planning and Development Department recommends that
the Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission APPROVE the designation of Lake Shore
Subdivision Gates, in the public right of way at Bayview Road and Appleton Street, (LM-08-02)
as a City of Jacksonville Landmark.
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IL.

DESIGNATION APPLICATION FOR

LAKE SHORE SUBDIVISION GATES
LOCATED IN THE PUBLIC RIGHT OF WAY AT
BAYVIEW ROAD AND APPLETON STREET

AS A LANDMARK
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|
|

City of Jacksonville Landmark, Landmark Site,
or Historic District Nomination Form

= e

as tor-Use by Staff =

- </Grayed Are

A SR

1. Name of Property

historic name LAKE SHORE SUBDIVISION GATES

other names _EMSE Number: * - *'eri- -

2. Location INTERSECTION OF BAYVIEW ROAD, APPLETON STREET AND BLANDING BOULEVARD

street & number

citv or town JACKSONVILLE

state FLORIDA code FL _countv DUVAL code R zipb code

Real estate assessment number(s) NONE - PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY

(Attach continuation sheet if necessary)

3. Sponsorship Statement

As the owner, or official representative of the owner, | am aware of the proposal for designation of the subject
property or properties listed above as a city of Jacksonville landmark, landmark site, or historic district. | have
been advised of the procedures for review of the proposal by the Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission
and the Jacksonville City Council. | understand that | will be notified of the date and place of any public meetings
at which the proposal will be considered by the Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission, and the City
Councill. | also agree to sponsor the application and pay for all.notification costs. | am also aware that if designated,
any construction activities affecting the subject properties including alterations, new construction, demolition and
relocation, will require a review for consistency with the appropriate standards.

[Signature of property owner or representative | Date |
Representatives need to provide a signed and notanzed letter from the property owner(s) identifying them as their official agent
Sponsorship other than owner or official representative

Consistent with Jacksonville Ordinance Codes 307.104(a) and 307.105(a), the proposal for designation as a city of
Jacksonville landmark, landmark site, or hustoric district is being sponsored by the Jacksonville Historic
Preservation Commission.

=T
TS

——
it
—

o A
Sigratureof sponsor

4, Legal Description of Property (according to county property appraiser’s office)

No legal description - Public Right-of-Way

28, R26E, Section 59

Attach conttnuation sheet if necessary
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Lake Shore Subdivision Gates

Name of Property

Address

5. Classification

Ownership of Property Category of Property
(Check as many boxes as apply) (Check only one box)
private buildings
X public-local ] district
[] public-State O site
[] public-Federal X structure
(O object

Name of related multiple property listings
(Enter “N/A” if property is not part of a multiple property listing.)

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include any previously listed resources in the count)

Contributing Noncontributing
buildings
Sites
4 structures
Obijects
4 total

Number of contributing resources previously
designated

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions

Landscape — Subdivision Gate

Current Functions

Landscape — Subdivision Gate

7. Description

Architectural Classification

Spanish Eclectic

Narrative Description

Materials
Foundation Masonry — Slab
walls Masonry & Stucco
roof Open
other Cast Stone

Barrel Tile

Descnbe the histonc and current condition of the property on one or more continuations sheets )

SEE ATTACHED CONTINUATION SHEETS
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City of Jacksonville

Landmark, Landmark Site, or Historic District
Nomination Form Continuation Sheet

7-1 PHYSICAL DESCRIPTION - Lake Shore Subdivision Gates
Bayview Road and Appleton Street

PRESENT AND ORIGINAL APPEARANCE
Summary:

Referred to in this report as gates, the four separate structures at the intersection of
Bayview Road and Appleton Street represent a decorative entryway into the Lake
Shore Subdivision that opened in 1924 & 25. These structures are numbered in the
attached aerial photograph. Divided by a grassy boulevard, Bayview Road is flanked
on both sides by an arched entryway that visually line-up with each other and with the
larger arched structure located in the center of the boulevard. Another structure,
which was originally a fountain but now serves as a planter, is located on the small
pocket park defined by Bayview Road, Blanding Boulevard and Appleton Street.
This structure is composed of a triangular shaped pool or planter that is highlighted
by a tall decorative wall that at one time was illuminated. The larger more prominent
arched structure in the center of the boulevard is composed of two small columns
connected by arms to the taller columns located on the west side of the boulevard.
All of the structures are composed of masonry covered with a rough textured stucco.
The initials, LS, are embossed in cast stone, and placed in the center of both arms.

Setting:

In addition to marking the old subdivision, the gates provide a visual break between
the residential uses to the south and east, and the commercial and institutional uses
that line both sides of Blanding Boulevard between San Juan Avenue and the Cedar
River. Residential uses associated with the old Lake Shore Subdivision continue on
the west side of the businesses that front Blanding Boulevard.

Description — Fountain/Planter (# 4)

Mimicking the triangular parcel defined by Blanding Boulevard, Appleton Street, and
Bayview Road, the decorative fountain, now used as a planter, was placed to front
Blanding Boulevard, which was the major entryway into the subdivision. The two
elements of the fountain are the triangular shaped pool that is defined by a low
masonry retaining wall, and the tall monument that marks the rear of the pool or
planter. The tip of the triangular pool terminates into a small square pilaster topped
with a slightly projecting cap. The central shaft of the monument is capped with a
gable end that was originally covered with terra cotta barrel tiles. Near the center of
the gable end on both sides is a circular opening that goes through the wall.
Approximately in the middle of the shaft are two evenly spaced arched enclaves that
rest on projecting cups. Below the cups is evidence of either plumbing or electrical

Exhibit 1
Page 12 of 57
City of Jacksonville

Landmark, Landmark Site, or Historic District
Nomination Form Continuation Sheet

conduits. The large shaft is framed on each side by two square pillars topped with
slightly projecting caps. The central pillars are tied to two smaller ones of the same
design by a sloping wall. The rear of the monument basically mimics the design of
the front. However, a small square opening centered at the bottom of the shaft
appears to be associated with the operation of the fountain. The central shaft and
associated pillars and walls rest on a tapered base.

Two Smaller Arched Gates (#1 & 3)

Constructed in the same design and with the same stucco texture as the fountain, two
smaller arched gates flank both sides of Bayview Road. With one facing east and the
other west, the arches of these gates line up visually with each other, and with the
main structure located in the boulevard that divides Bayview Road. These structures
are composed of a single arch defined on each end by slightly raised square pillars
topped with two corbelled caps. The top of the arch is defined by a belt course that
supports a row of crenellation. Each of the taller pillars is connected to a shorter one
by a sloping wall. Both walls are capped by ledgers that slightly projects on both
sides. These ledgers along with the corner of the pillars and the projecting base
define a recessed design on both sides of each wall that mimics the slope of the
ledges. The pillars, arches, and walls set on a tapered base.

Central Gateway (#2)

The most prominent feature of the Lake Shore Gates is the tall structure centered at
beginning of the boulevard that divides Bayview Road. Constructed using similar
design elements and materials, the central gateway is composed of two faux towers
on the west end that is connected by two sloping arms or buttresses to pillars on the
east end. The west elevation of the two towers is defined by a pair of pillars
supporting an arched opening similar to the design and height of those flanking both
sides of Bayview Road (#1 & 3). Resting on a slightly tapered base, the pillars,
which are topped with slightly projecting caps, support an arch with the base belt
course and row of crenellation.

The narrow walls of the west elevation of the faux towers rise from behind the pillars
with ledgers that taper up to the gable end of each tower. Towards the top of the
towers, the ledgers continue downward to create a recessed arched space, mimicking
a small window opening. At the top of this recessed arch is a single arched opening.
Another recess treatment on the east end of the towers along with that found on the
west end results in creating a projecting pilaster on each side of the towers that make
a tee shape at the top which in turn supports a gable capped with barrel tile. In the
apex of each gable end of the towers is a single circular opening similar to that found
on the fountain. The towers are connected on the inside below the circular openings

Exhibit 1
Page 13 of 57
City of Jacksonville

Landmark, Landmark Site, or Historic District
Nomination Form Continuation Sheet

with projecting pilasters that support an arch topped with a belt course and row of
crenellation. The exterior recessed walls on the east side of the tee-shaped pilasters
merge with two downward sloping arms or buttresses that connect the towers with the
lower arch on the east end of the central gateway. These arms or buttresses are
covered by two vertical rows of barrel tile. Centrally placed on the exterior elevation
of each of the arms are the initials LS embossed in a cast stone panel. The arms slope
down easterly to connect with two slightly raised pillars that support an arch topped
with a belt course and a row of crenellation, replicating the design of the one on the
west end. The large arched opening created by the arms or buttresses allows the
landscaped boulevard to be visible from the north.

Alterations

Based on historic photographs, all four of the structures constituting the Lake Shore
Subdivision gates have not been significantly altered, but have some degree of
deterioration. Most of the deterioration evident was stucco damage and stress cracks,
as well as damaged or missing barrel tiles. The missing or damaged tiles on the gable
tops of the two faux towers have allowed moisture penetration which has weakened
mortar joints. Other original elements such as the ten gas lamps have also been
removed over the years. The single tall monument on the parcel northwest of the
gates was originally part of a fountain that flowed from the shaft into the triangular
pool now used as a planter.
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Lake Shore Subdivision Gates

Name of Property Address

8. Statement of Significance

Applicable Landmark Designation Criteria

(Mark “x” in one or more boxes for the cntena qualifying the property Areas of Significance

for Landmark Designation )

X A lts value as a significant reminder of the cultural, historical, O Agriculture O Industry
architectural, or archaeological heritage of the City, state . . .
or nation. X  Architecture [0 Mantime History

[J Archaeology [ Military

[ B its location is the site of a significant local, state or national

X Community Planning

Politics/Government

event.
Commerce [0 Recreation
[ ¢ it 1s identified with a person or persons who significantly O Education Social History
contributed to the development of the City, state or nation. [] Early Settlement [J Transportation
D it is identified as the work of a master builder, designer, or U Health/Medicine Other:
architect whose individual work has influenced the
development of the City, state or nation. Period of Significance
E Its value as a building is recognized for the quality of its
architecture, and it retains sufficient elements showing its 1924-1928
architectural significance.
X F It has distinguishing charactenstics of an architectural
style valuable for the study of a period, method of
construction, or use of indigenous matenals Significant Dates
X G Its suitability for preservation or restoration 1925
Criteria Considerations
(Mark “x” in all the boxes that apply )
Property 1s: Significant Person
A owned by a religious institution or used for
religious purposes. .
Cultural Affiliation
[ B removed from its onginal location
(O ¢ a birthplace or grave.
[ D a cemetery
[ E a reconstructed building, object, or structure. Architect/Builder
[J F a commemorative property.
[ G less than 50 years of age or achieved significance
within the past 50 years
Narrative Statement of Significance
(Explain the significance of the property on one or more continuation sheets.)
PLEASE SEE ATTACHED CONTINUATION SHEETS
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8.1: NARRATIVE STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE - Lake Shore Subdivision
Gates
Bayview Road and
Appleton Street

Summary

For the purposes of this historical context description, the Lake Shore area is defined
by San Juan Avenue to the north, the CSX Railroad and Roosevelt Boulevard to the
east, and Cedar Creek to the south and west. The area is bounded on the north by
Murray Hill and Hillcrest, by St. Johns Park and Fairfax to the east, Hyde Park to the
west, and Cedar Hills and Confederate Point to the south. Although part of colonial
era land grants, Lake Shore for the most part remained rural and sparingly populated
until the first quarter of the twentieth century. Early plats that would later constitute
the Lake Shore community were filed between 1908 and 1928. Ten separate plats in
the area were filed between 1924 and 1928 by the Lake Shore Corporation and the
Bayview Corporation under Beale C. and James S. Buck with Buck & Buck Realty.
Although platted during the height of the Florida Land Boom, Lake Shore did not
significantly develop until the period immediately before and after World War II.
Residential growth in Lake Shore and surrounding neighborhoods was greatly
stimulated by the opening of the Jacksonville Naval Air Station in 1940.

Colonial Periods through the Nineteenth Century

Early settlement of what became Duval County was greatly influenced by the issuing
of large land grants to encourage both settlement and economic development, a
practice employed by both the Spanish and British during the Colonial Periods.'
During the First Spanish Period (1565 - 1763), much of the present day communities
of Ortega and Lake Shore were part of a large land grant made to Captain Antonio
Felipe de Bustus. Known as Hacienda de Ostule, this huge tract stretched from the
Black Creek in present day Clay County north to the present site of Downtown
Jacksonville. During the twenty-year British Period. some of this huge tract was
included in a 2,000-acre land grant made to Abraham Jones from Georgia. After
establishing a plantation in the Ortega area, Abraham Jones accompanied noted
naturalist, William Bartram, on his tour of the Ortega River, at that time called
Maxton Creek. Located on at the junction of the St. Johns River and Maxton’s Creek,
Jones' plantation was abandoned by 1775.

T Fredenck Davis, History of Jacksonville, Flonda and Vicimity (St Augustine, Florida: The Florida
Histortcal Society, 1925), pp. 26-28

James Robertson Ward, Old Hickory's Town, An [llustrated History of Jacksonville. (Jacksonville, Flonda.
Old Hickory’s Town, Incorporated, 1985), pp. 63-64

? Pleasant Daniel Gold, History of Duval County. (St. Augustine, Flonda: The Record Company, 1928)
pp 53 & 66
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Before the end of the British Period, Jones' plantation came to be occupied by
Colonel Daniel McGirtt, one of the most colorful figures in the early history of East
Florida. After siding with the patriots during the American Revolution, McGirtts
changed allegiance to the British, and began cattle and slave raids into the Georgia
colony. However, McGirtts and his men soon expanded their raids to include both
American and British plantations and settlements. After escaping captivity by the
British governor of East Florida, McGirtts and his men, latter called banditti by the
Spanish, continued their raids during the Second Spanish Period (1783-1821). After
being captured twice and sent to prison in Cuba, McGirtts was apprehended and
imprisoned for the last time in 1797. Over time Maxton's Creek became known as
McGirtt's Creek.

A significant early development in Ortega and Lake Shore dates to the Second
Spanish Period (1784-1821) when Spanish Governor Juan Quesada granted 4,000
acres to Don Juan McQueen of Darien, Georgia. In 1804 McQueen sold the
plantation, called San Juan Nepomuceno, and the surrounding acreage to John
Houston McIntosh.®> McIntosh renamed the plantation Ortega in honor of Judge Josef
de Ortega, a Spanish magistrate. United States authorities, under terms of the Adams-
Onis Treaty of 1819, confirmed legal title to McIntosh after the transfer of Florida
from Spain in 1821. McIntosh died in 1836, and his daughter subsequently sold his
holdings to Asa and Austin Moore. The Moores re-sold the property in 1857 to John
P. Sanderson. In 1902 Sanderson's heirs sold part of the plantation to the Jacksonville
Ortega Town Company headed by United States Senator Wilkinson Call. The Ortega
development was financed in part by a $50,000 loan from New York financier, J.
Pierpont Morgan. Senator Call's failing health curtailed the development of Ortega
until 1906, when he sold the tract to J.N.C. Stockton's Ortega Company.

During the Civil War, the City of Jacksonville was occupied four times by Union forces
with their navy controlling the St. Johns River and its tributaries during most of the
conflict. Much of the military action in Duval County was skirmishes that occurred in
the western part of the county that connected Jacksonville to the interior of the state by
rail and wagon roads. By the fourth occupation, the Confederates were concentrated at
Camp Milton and Camp Finegan with the Union behind earthen defensive walls and
redoubts constructed between Hogans Creek and McCoys Creek in the downtown area.’
One military engagement, “the Skirmish at Cedar Creek”, which involved a force of 500

3 Work Projects Admunistration, Historical Records Survey, Spanish Land Grants in Flonda, Volume 4.
Confirmed Claims, (Tallahassee, Flonda: State Library Board, May, 1941). Pp 104-109.

Gold, p. 66.

* Camp Finegan was reportedly located off Normandy Boulevard near Joseph Stllwell Middle School.
Camp Milton was a hnear fortification that paralleled McGurts Creek from north of Old Plank Road south
to the railroad.
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confederate soldiers, occurred on May 25, 1864 along present day Lenox Avenue
between Cedar Creek and Memorial Park Road.>

After the Civil War, Jacksonville soon regained its prominence as a major rail center with
the expansion of existing lines and the opening of new ones. Chartered in 1875, the
Jacksonville, Tampa & Key West Railroad started construction of a line in 1883
connecting Jacksonville to Palatka. The principal promoter of the railroad was
millionaire coal operator, Robert H. Coleman, of Cornwall, Pennsylvania. In April of
1883, A.M. Reed signed a deed providing a right-of-way for the railroad through the
western edge of his property at Mulberry Point®. By the time the first train went by on
March 6, 1884, Reed had constructed an open shed along the track called Reed's Landing
or Reed's Station that connected his Mulberry Grove plantation by rail with Jacksonville.
The station and surrounding community later went by the name of Yukon. Undergoing a
receivership, the railroad was purchased in April of 1899 by the Plant Investment
Company and was incorporated as part of the Savannah, Florida & Western Railway
System. After the death of Henry Plant, the line was merged with the Atlantic Coast Line
Railroad. Now part of the CSX System, this railroad line forms the eastern boundary of
Lake Shore.

Twentieth Century

Cedar Creek, which forms the south and west boundaries of Lake Shore, was by the
early nineteenth century a major waterway connecting interior farms and plantations
in southwest Duval County with other communities along the St Johns River. Both
Cedar Creek and McGirts Creek were also used to float logs to a sawmill that opened
in 1912 on the current site of the Sadler Point Marina. Under the ownership of
Morgan V. Gress, originally from Atlanta, Georgia, this facility included houses for
African American workers and their families in nearby cottages constructed on the
current site of the Roosevelt Shopping Center.” A later account of the sawmill
community described twelve to fifteen families living in single and double shotgun
houses. Typical of the period, the sawmill community was served by a company
store.® Reportedly, the mill was destroyed by fire and had closed down by 1955.°
East of the sawmill along Lake Shore Boulevard was Huckins Yacht Corporation that
opened in 1945, as well as the home site of early settler, Carl Warden, Sr., a Russian

5 Wilham M. Jones, A Report on the Site of Camp Finegan, A Confederate Stronghold, Duval County,
Flonda. Unpublished, 1959, p.5.

§ Mulberry Point 1s now part of the grounds of the Jacksonville Naval Air Station.

7 Gold, p. 506.

SRosalie Cates, “Westside — Logging Trails”, Bargain Finder, Volume 1, Issue 11, April 26, 1988, p. 2.
*Flonda Times Union, “Ortega Has Rich History”, November 21, 1999. In this article, long time resident
Grace Rogers referred to the mull as being operated by the Gress Lumber Company.

A 1908 plat of the area 1dentified the mull site, which had frontage on the Ortega River, as being owner by
the Hillman Sutherland Company.
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immigrant who purchased his creek front property in 1910. A man of many talents,
Warden was a master boat builder, farmer, carpenter, and according to local legend,
moon shiner."

Northwest of Lake Shore, a tributary known as Wills Branch splits from the Cedar
River. At this split was located a spring that became the focal point of a planned
community during the first decade of the twentieth century. This planned
development around the Lackawanna Springs, which was connected by Willis
Branch, also called the Lackawanna Run, to the Cedar River, included a hotel and
park site, a bottling works, poultry plant, and yacht dock.'" Living at Lackawanna
Springs as early as 1908, James Holloman was the secretary and treasurer of the
Jacksonville Development Company, as well as the president of the Lackawanna
Hotel Company and the Lackawanna Poultry Supplies.'> Local historian, William
Jones, described the springs as a health resort established by Anleno Holloman. The
resort consisted of a boathouse, spring house, wading pool, guest house, and
landscaped sidewalks. He also stated that many of the buildings associated with the
resort were still intact in the late 1930s."

The bottling works probably referred to the one operated by the Lackawanna Water
Company, under J. A. Grizzard, president and manager, O.H. Wright, vice-president,
and E.S. Moore, secretary. With a steady flow of 30,000 gallons daily, water from
Lackawanna spring was quite popular requiring a distribution center in Downtown
Jacksonville where water was delivered by a motorized delivery truck. Reportedly,
ihe Lackawanna Water Company had plans or did enclosed part of the spring with
marble and iron to improve its appearance and access.'* After abandonment of the
resort, Lackawanna Springs became a favorite swimming hole and picnic spot for
many west side residents.

Publications at the time of its development not only highlighted the physical beauty
of the area around the springs and associated wide and graded avenues, but also it’s
potential for horticultural uses such as truck farms and orchards that would serve the
growing Jacksonville market. The Jacksonville Development Company subdivided
much of the area, which was referred to as being part of a grand old estate, into one-
acre tracts in order to attract those wishing to have large home site with adequate
space for vegetable gardens, flower beds, and chicken yards. The home sites

 Florida Times Union, Rwer City News — Westside Ediion, March 24, 1999, p. 1.

" Lackawanna, Plat Book 4, p. 66, 1911 & Lackawanna Town Site, Plat Book 4, p 79, 1912.

2 Jacksonville City Directories, 1907 — 1912

¥ Jones, Old Gravelly Hill, p. 6; Figure 4 1n his report 1s a photograph of the comerstone from the spnng
house with the date, 1908 and identifying Auleno Hollomon as naming the springs.

'* The Florida Times Union, Sunday, May 14, 1911, p. 22. The location of the Lackawanna Springs was on
the east side of Lane Avenue at the end of Londontowne Lane (Londontowne Apartments) just north of the
Wills Branch Bridge.
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appeared to be quite desirable, with a company publication reporting that fifty-two
lots were sold in the first two hours of the land sale.”” Lackawanna Springs was
described as being accessible from Downtown Jacksonville by a brick paved road
(Lenox Avenue, Black Creek Road, and Lackawanna Avenue). Because Lackawanna
Avenue, later Edison Avenue, was the major thoroughfare through the neighborhood
north of Riverside, it became recognized by the name, Lackawanna.

Significant residential development that encroached on the rural tranquility of the
Lake Shore area came from the east, west, and north. Population growth in the city
began pushing residential development outside of the southwestern confines of
Riverside, Avondale, Ortega, St. Johns Park and Murray Hill. This process was
particularly accelerated by the opening of the Jacksonville Naval Air Station and
Cecil Field, as well as Camp Blanding in Clay County in the early 1940s. As early as
1908 and 1911, a parcel of land along Cedar Creek west of Lake Shore was platted
several times for residential development. However these earlier plats, Johnson &
Hyde’s Subdivision and Cedar Springs, were incorporated into a new plat filed in
October of 1926 by the Hyde Park Company under Forrest J. Hyde, president, and
Mildred Hyde Riles, secretary. Partially bounded by the Cedar River and
Lackawanna Run (Wills Branch), the focal point of the new Hyde Park Subdivision
was a golf course designed by Donald Ross, a nationally recognized pioneer golf
course designer. Preceding the filing of the plat by a year, the golf course was
operated by the Hyde Park Country Club, a private club organized in February of
1925.' Located across the creek, the presence of this golf course and country club
was used to promote Lake Shore which also opened in 1925.

The first recorded plat in the Lake Shore area was Lake Side Park opened by the
Riverside Realty Company in 1908 directed by W.M. Stimson and Robert E. Wood."
This large triangular shaped subdivision, which included approximately 590 acres, ran
from the first bend on the Cedar River north of St. Johns Avenue bridge (Old Orange
Park Road, now Blanding Boulevard) east to the mouth of the Ortega River (Fairfax
Manor), and from present day San Juan Avenue south to Ortega River/Cedar Creek.

Lake Side Park included some street names still used today including Lake Shore
Boulevard, Hamilton Street, Fair Street, Euclid Street, Jersey Street, Stimson Street, Vista
Street, Erie Street, and St. Johns Avenue (Blanding Boulevard). The east-west streets
were originally numbered, 62™ to 80" Streets, consistent with the treatment of such
streets in old neighborhoods north of Downtown and in the Old Jacksonville Heights area
south and west of Lakeshore. The 1908 plat identified several parcels under private

Y Florida Yearbook and Almanac, 1912, Compilation of Authontative Data on the States Resources and
Industries. James A. Hollomon, Jacksonville, Fl.

'$Johnson & Hyde's Subdivision, Plat Book 3, p. 16; Cedar Springs, Plat Book 4, p. 22; Hyde Park, and
Plat Book 12, p. 75.

Jonathan Rogers, “History 1s Par for Hyde Park Golf Course”, The 10-4-5 Express, January 22, 1998, p. 14.
'7 Lake Side Park, Plat Book 3, p. 11, 1908
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ownership with the largest being the property of Philip Prioleau.'® Part of his large
parcel, which stretched from Lake Shore Boulevard to St. Johns Avenue (Blanding
Boulevard), is currently occupied by Lake Shore Middle School and Bayview Elementary
School. At the immediate northwest corner of the Lake Side Park Plat is a large parcel
along Cedar Creek identified as a hotel site. Also depicted on this site is a spring that fed
into Cedar Creek.

The 1918 USGS Topographic Map of Jacksonville depicts most of Lake Shore as being
undeveloped west of the railroad. At that time, Blanding Boulevard was named the Old
Orange Park Road that ran south to the Wesconnett community before reaching Orange
Park. The Old Orange Park Road, which was also depicted on the 1914 plat as St. Johns
Avenue, went north to present day San Juan Avenue and east to Herschel Street, where it
crossed Fishweir Creek north to Riverside and Avondale. Interestingly the only
institution in the Lake Shore area identified on the map was the Flagler Preparatory
School along Lake Shore Boulevard near the intersection of San Juan Avenue and Cedar
River. Probably located on the hotel site, this school was identified in the city directory
as the “Flagler Preparatory School for Girls — Cedar Springs”. 19

Much of the current physical design of Lake Shore resulted from a series of plats filed
during the Florida Land Boom of the 1920s. Although South Florida received the lion's
share of development, virtually every section of the state experienced significant growth
during the boom. Jacksonville became a primary departure point for visitors entering
Florida. In early 1925 some 20-25 trains were arriving at the city each day. The
Chamber of Commerce reported that over 150,000 automobiles had passed over the St.
Johns River Bridge (Acosta Bridge) during the spring of 1925. In July of that year alone,
building permits issued totaled $1,177,383, ranking J acksonv1lle sixth in the state in new
construction behind the major cities of the southern pemnsula Although drawn in
1913, a replat of part of Lake Side Park was filed in 1923 by the New Riverside Realty
Company under the direction of C. Downing and Louis R. Fendig. Called Lake Shore
Drive Lots this new subdivision appeared to have been incorporated into later plats of
the area.”

A significant part of the old Lake Side Park plat was replated or incorporated into the
Lake Shore development that was located on both sides of St. Johns Avenue (Blanding
Boulevard). The Lake Shore development included ten different plats filed between 1925

'8 Atthe time, Philip Prioleau was City Engineer and Commussioner of Buildings. He resided 1n
Downtown Jacksonville.

' Jacksonville City Directory, 1919.

% Histonc Property Associates, Inc. Historic Property Survey of the San Marco Area of Jacksonville. (St.
Augustine, Flonda: Historic Property Associates, Inc., 1990),, pp. 18-19.

Michael Gannon, Editor, A New History of Flonida. “Fortune and Misfortune: The Paradoxical
Twenties™:by William W, Rogers. (Gamnesville, FI* University Press of Flonda, 1996}, pp 290 — 298.

%! Lake Shore Drive Lots, Plat Book 8, p. 27, 1923.
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and 1928 by Buck & Buck Realty Company founded in 1907 under Beale C. and James
S. Buck. Section 2 platted in 1925 included the distinctive boulevard that divides
Bayview Road. At the termination of Bayview Road and St. Johns Avenue (Blanding
Boulevard) three arched Spanish style subdivision gates along with a decorative
fountain/planter were constructed. Large and decorative gates and entryways, usually
with a Mediterranean influence, were the hallmark of many subdivisions developed
during the Florida Land Boom of the 1920s. An article about street names in
subdivisions of the period stated that the 250 acre “Lake Shore Estates” used English
names for new streets including Westbury, Essex, Durham, Brighton, Kent, Somerset,
Stratford, Shenstone, Isleworth, Wilton, Avon, Pembridge, and Suffolk Road.? A
business district was also planned for Lake Shore Estates, but never specified as far as
location. However, most early commercial development a;z)pears to cluster around the
intersection of Blanding Boulevard and San Juan Avenue.”

An important element of marketing new residential developments during the Florida
Land Boom was the use of extensive newspaper advertising that many times included full
page ads promoting and slightly exaggerating the many attributes of the new community.
These advertisements were supplemented by news articles that reinforced the same spirit
of optimism and civic boosterism but combined with a significant degree of hype. This
description was also true in the marketing of Lake Shore as reflected by news articles in
1925 that described the development as being an “unqualified success”, and “represents
the largest single improved (sic.) project and development in Duval County”.** These
articles also highlighted Lake Shore’s scenic location with one mile of waterfront along
Cedar Creek and its rural tranquility while being only minutes from downtown. Found in
these articles were general descriptions of the infrastructural improvements planned for
the new community. For example representatives of Buck & Buck Realty stated that
when completed, Lake Shore will have an estimated twenty miles of paved streets, and
thirty miles of sidewalks. By January of 1925, new water lines had been laid, electric
lines were being strung, and streets were being paved.” Other popular methods of
subdivision hype during the 1920s included the construction of model homes, use of
buses to transport potential homebuyers to the site, as well as attracting public attention
by offering a variety of entertainment and special promotions. Buck & Buck Realty
Comparzlg offered bus tours, as well as a “grand opening” that included a drawing to win
a pony.

2 Francis J Mulvihill, “Street Names for Subdivisions”, The Florida Engineer and Contractor. Apnl,
1926, pp. 55 & 63.; Lake Shore Estates, Sec A, Plat Book 13, p. 61, 1928 The article was wntten before
the plat was officially filed in 1928.

2 Lake Shore Section 1; Section 2; Section 3, Section 4; Section 5, Section 6; Section 7, Section 8, &
Section A, Lake Shore Estates (Bk 13, P. 61, 1925).

2 Florida Times Union, February 8, 1925, March 15, 1925.

% Tbid, January 18, 1925.

26 Oral Interview — James Buck, August 11, 2008.
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Representatives of Buck & Buck Realty Company emphasized the employment of
professional engineers, landscape architects, and nurserymen in planning the physical
layout of the development. The company also stressed the presence of strong deed
restrictions popular during a time when most communities lacked any form of a zoning
code. Some of the new streets, as exemplified by Bayview Road in Section Two, would
by 120’ in width with a 30’ wide landscape parkway. A ten foot grassy right-of-way with
a row of palms will be located between the sidewalk and the curb. In January of 1925,
the newspaper reported that the foundation of a “Spanish Style Bungalow” had been laid
by local contractors, Albertus J. Cone and Henry A. Halsema with another home in the
design process.27 The two homes under construction were probably the residences at
2241 Bayview Road (1924) and 2309 Bayview Road (1925). The developers also
announced that twenty new homes of Spanish architecture were being planned by the
Suburban Homes Company. However, the articles went on to state that a variety of
architectural styles, in addition to the Spanish Revival; would be included in the design of
new homes.?

Although construction of homes appeared slow, the sale of lots was brisk according to
Buck & Buck Realty Company who reported $100,000 in sales over a thirty day period
with many buyers being from other states including Maine, Nebraska, New York, New
Jersey, and Ohio. All the lots in Section One completely sold out, with half of those in
Section Two being reserved before officially put on the market. A 1925 article noted that
one of the principal owners in Lake Shore was Augustus Anthony, President of the
Peoples Bank who resided in an impressive manor style house in Riverside.”’ By May of
1925, the lots in Section 4 were reportedly sold out with only 106 lots remaining in
Section 5. Once all the lots in Section 5 were sold, Buck & Buck Realty Company was
going to take a “‘take a real estate rest” due to high sales and the need to complete
infrastructure. *°

With the financially disastrous bust of the boom during the mid-1920s, several
Jacksonville subdivisions of the era, such as Lake Shore, Venetia, and San Jose Estates,
never reached their full potential and for the most part remained undeveloped until new
residential construction became active during the 1940s and 50s. A second development
was platted in 1941 in response to the housing shortage created by the opening of the
Jacksonville Naval Air Station, Camp Blanding and the St. Johns River Shipbuilding.
Called Riverdale Gardens and developed by the Defense Homes Corporation of
Maryland, this subdivision was defined by Lake Shore Boulevard on the south and east,
school property on the north, and St. Johns Avenue (Blanding Boulevard) on the west.
Streets in the Riverdale Gardens included Lake Shore Boulevard, Riverdale Road,

" The 1925 city directory histed A.J Cone as president of Wilson-Otwell-Cone, Inc, - lumber and Henry C.
Halsema as a contractor

2 January 18, 1925.

% Ibid, March 15, 1925. Anthony resided at the Manor Inn, 1630 Copeland Street.

% Florda Times Union, May 9, 1925, p. 21; May 10, 1925, p. 20; May 13, 1925, p 3, May 20, 1925, p 3.
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Cedarwood Road, Cherrywood Road, Bayview Road, Elmwood Road, Boxwood Road,
Myrtlewood Road, Tulipwood Road, with four parcels facing St. Johns Avenue
(Blanding Boulevard).*' '

With continued residential growth, schools, churches, and other institutions were
organized to serve the growing community. Most were organized during or after World
War II which coincided with the significant population growth in Lake Shore during this
period. Lake Shore Jr. High and Elementary School on Bayview Road opened in 1942.
Being over crowded from the beginning, an addition was made in 1943, with the
elementary grades moving to the new Bayview Elementary School in 1954. In 1947,
Lake Shore Presbyterian Church opened in a small residence near the corner of Blanding
Boulevard and Birkenhead Road before moving into their current facility in 1951 at 2270
Blanding Boulevard.3? Immediately north of Lake Shore, St. Matthews Catholic Church
opened at 1767 Blanding Boulevard in 1947. Originally using a relocated military chapel

from Camp Blanding, the church opened a parish school in 1951 with a new sanctuary
constructed in 1956.%

The Lake Shore United Methodist Church was organized in 1945 and built its current
sanctuary in 1949 at 2246 Blanding Boulevard, which was partially funded by the
Livingston Memorial.** In 1951, the Lake Shore Church of Christ opened its sanctuary at
2121 Blanding Boulevard. The church worshipped at this location until moving to a new
facility along Old Middleburg Road in 2005. The old sanctuary is currently occupied by
the Korean Presbyterian Church.®® Another early church in the community is Lake Shore
Baptist Church at 2363 Blanding Boulevard which was formed in 1943. First using old
U.S. Army mess hall buildings, the church moved into a new brick sanctuary that served
the congregation until the present one was constructed in 1966.% The community was
also served by the Lake Shore Woman’s Club which was formed in 1946 as the Lake

3! Riverdale Gardens, Bk. 17, pp. 9, 9A, & 9B, 1941.

3 Florida Times Union, River City News — Westside Addition October 25, 1997, p. 1.

*! Charles Gallagher, Ph.D Cross & Crozier, The Hustory of the Diocese of Saint Augustine.
(Jacksonville: The Diocese of St. Augustine, 1999), p.119.

* William Brook, Editor. From Saddlebays to Satellites, A History of Flonda Methodism. (Flonda Annual
Conference of Methodist Churches, 1969), p 263

Robert M. Temple, J1. Florida Flame* A History of the Florida Conference of the United Methodist
Church. (Commussion of Archives and History, Flonda Conference United Methodist Church, 1987),
p-390.

The memonial fund was left by C.O. Livingston for the construction of Methodist churches 1n northeast
Flonda

%3 Nadine Ferguson, “Lake Shore Church of Chnist” The Southern Genealogist’s Exchange Society
Quarterly. Vol. 46, #196, December, 2005, pp. 16 & 17.
38 History of Lake Shore Baptist Church, Unpublished document, c. 1993.
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Shore Garden Club, later changing to their current name and becoming a member of the
Florida Federation of Women’s Clubs in 1949.

With the opening and operation of the Jacksonville Naval Air Station, as well as the
large military facility at Camp Blanding, during World War II, residential and
commercial growth continued south from Lake Shore towards Wesconnett.
Following the general route of the Old Orange Park Road, Blanding Boulevard was
constructed in the 1940s as a more direct route connecting Downtown Jacksonville
with Camp Blanding in order to facilitate troop transport from the Jacksonville
Terminal. One of the largest residential developments to the south of Lake Shore was
Cedar Hills Estates developed in the late 1950s by the St. Johns Development
Company under William B. Towers and C.D. Towers, Jr. This large residential
development resulted from thirteen separate plats and replats.®® The significant
residential growth resulting from the development of Cedar Hills Estates in turn
stimulated commercial construction particularly along Blanding Boulevard. The
Lake Shore area did not become part of the City of Jacksonville until city-county
consolidation in 1968.

SIGNIFICANCE OF PROPOSED LANDMARK AS RELATED TO
DESIGNATION CRITERIA:

(1.)  Its value as a significant reminder of the cultural, historical, architectural,
or archaeological heritage of the City, state or nation.

Constructed in 1925 with a Mediterranean influenced design, the Lake Shore
Subdivision gates and fountain/planter at the intersection of Bayview Road and
Blanding Boulevard represent the most significant tangible reminder of the Lake
Shore Subdivision. Developed by Buck & Realty Company, Lake Shore was an
extensive planned community along the banks of the Cedar River that opened in 1925
during the Great Florida Land Boom of the 1920's. Platted and opened more towards
the end of the boom, Lake Shore never achieved any significant degree of
development, resulting in it’s predominate growth occurring during and after World
War II. With the exception of a few Mediterranean influenced residences, the gates
stand in sharp visual contrast to the newer residential, commercial and institutional
architecture that surround it. Prominent and decorative gates, towers, and fountains
were a common tool used by developers during the boom to visually define a new
subdivision in what was usually cleared vacant land.

37 E-mail communication from Carla Bathurst with Lake Shore Area Preservation Society, December 8,
2008.
%Cedar Hills Estates, Plat Books 27-31.
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Much of the current physical design of Lake Shore resulted from a series of plats filed
during the Florida Land Boom of the 1920s. Although South Florida received the lion's
share of development, virtually every section of the state experienced significant growth
during the boom. Jacksonville became a primary departure point for visitors entering
Florida. In early 1925 some 20-25 trains were arriving at the city each day. The
Chamber of Commerce reported that over 150,000 automobiles had passed over the St.
Johns River Bridge (Acosta Bridge) during the spring of 1925. In July of that year alone,
building permits totaled $1,177,383 in value, ranking Jacksonville sixth in the state in
new construction behind the major cities of the southern peninsula.?’9

Located on both sides of St. Johns Avenue (Blanding Boulevard), the Lake Shore
development included ten different plats filed between 1925 and 1928 by Buck & Buck
Realty Company founded in 1907 under Beale C. and James S. Buck. Section 2 platted
in 1925 included the distinctive boulevard that divides Bayview Road. At the termination
of Bayview Road and St. Johns Avenue (Blanding Boulevard) three separate arched
Spanish style subdivision gates were constructed, along with a decorative
fountain/planter defined by a decorative monument. Large and decorative gates and
entryways, usually with a Mediterranean influence, were the hallmark of many
subdivisions developed during the Florida Land Boom of the 1920s. A business district
was also planned for Lakeshore Estates, but never specified as far as location. However,
most early commercial development appears to cluster around the intersection of
Blanding Boulevard and San Juan Avenue.*”

An important element of marketing new residential developments during the Florida
Land Boom was the use of extensive newspaper advertising that many times included full
page ads promoting and slightly exaggerating the many attributes of the new community.
These advertisements were supplemented by news articles that reinforced the same spirit
of optimism and civic boosterism but usually combined with a significant degree of hype.
This description was also true in the marketing of Lake Shore as reflected by news
articles in 1925 that described the development as being an “unqualified success”, and
“represents the largest single improved (sic.) project and development in Duval
County”.*! These articles also highlighted Lake Shore’s scenic location with one mile of
waterfront along Cedar Creek and its rural tranquility while being only minutes from
downtown. Found in these articles were general descriptions of the infrastructural
improvements planned for the new community. For example representatives of Buck &

¥ 3 Histonic Property Associates, Inc. Historic Property Survey of the San Marco Area of Jacksonville.
(St. Augustine, Flonda: Historic Property Associates, Inc, 1990), pp. 18-19.

Michael Gannon, Editor, A New History of Florida “Fortune and Misfortune: The Paradoxical Twenties™:
by William W. Rogers. (Ganesville, Fl: University Press of Florida, 1996), pp.290 — 298.

% |akeshore Section 1; Section 2; Section 3; Section 4; Section 5, Section 6; Section 7; Section 8, &
Section A, Lake Shore Estates (Bk 13, P. 61, 1925)

* Florida Times Union, February 8, 1925; March 15, 1925.
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Buck Realty stated that when completed, Lake Shore will have an estimated twenty miles
of paved streets, and thirty miles of sidewalks. By January of 1925, new water lines had
been laid, electric lines were being strung, and streets were being paved.42 Other popular
methods of subdivision hype during the 1920s included the construction of model homes,
use of buses to transport potential homebuyers to the site, as well as attracting public
attention by offering a variety of entertainment and special promotions. Buck & Buck
Realty Company offered bus tours, as well as a “grand opening” that included a drawing
to win a pony.®

Representatives of Buck & Buck Realty Company emphasized the employment of
professional engineers, landscape architects, and nurserymen in planning the physical
layout of the development. The company also stressed the presence of strong deed
restrictions popular during a time when most commuuities lacked any form of a zoning
code. Some of the new streets, as exemplified by Bayview Road in Section Two, would
by 120’ in width with a 30’ wide landscape parkway. A ten foot grassy right-of-way with
a row of palms will be located between the sidewalk and the curb. In January of 1925,
the newspaper reported that the foundation of a “Spanish Style Bungalow” had been laid
by local contractors, Albertus J. Cone and Henry A. Halsema with another home in the
design process.44 The two homes under construction were probably the residences at
2241 Bayview Road (1924) and 2309 Bayview Road (1925). The developers also
announced that twenty new homes of Spanish architecture were being planned by the
Suburban Homes Company. However, the articles went on to state that a variety of
architectural styles, in addition to the Spanish Revival; would be included in the design of
new homes.*

Although construction of homes appeared slow, the sale of lots was brisk according to
Buck & Buck Realty Company who reported $100,000 in sales over a thirty day period
with many buyers being from other states including Maine, Nebraska, New York, New
Jersey, and Ohio. All the lots in Section One completely sold out, with half of those in
Section Two being reserved before officially put on the market. A 1925 article noted that
one of the principal owners in Lake Shore was Augustus Anthony, President of the
Peoples Bank who resided in an impressive manor style house in Riverside.* By May of
1925, the lots in Section 4 were reportedly sold out with only 106 lots remaining in
Section 5. Once all the lots in Section 5 were sold, Buck & Buck Realty Company was
going to take a “take a real estate rest” due to high sales and the need to complete
infrastructure.*’ With the financially disastrous bust of the boom during the mid-1920s,

* Ibid, January 18, 1925.

3 Oral Interview — James Buck, August 11, 2008.

“ The 1925 city directory listed A.J. Cone as president of Wilson-Otwell-Cone, Inc, - lumber and Henry C
Halsema as a contractor

“ January 18, 1925.

46 Ibid, March 15, 1925 Anthony resided at the Manor Inn, 1630 Copeland Street.

*? Florida Times Union, May 9, 1925, p. 21; May 10, 1925, p. 20; May 13, 1925, p. 3; May 20, 1925, p. 3.
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several Jacksonville subdivisions of that era, such as Lake Shore, Venetia, and San Jose
Estates, never reached their full potential and for the most part remained undeveloped
until new residential construction became active during the 1940s and 50s.

6. It has distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style valuable for the
study of a period, method of construction, or use of indigenous materials.

Consistent with the popular revival styles that complemented Florida’s hyped fantasy
image during the boom, the Lake Shore Subdivision gates exemplifies the Spanish
Eclectic or Mediterranean Revival Style common between 1918 and 1939. The style
was very popular in Florida during the 1920's, and has come to be closely associated
with the Great Florida Land Boom of that period. The Mediterranean Revival Style
was used in the design of residences, commercial buildings, schools, and churches. A
synthesis of both Italian and Spanish motifs, the Mediterranean Revival Style was the
dominant architectural theme for most of Jacksonville’s boom era subdivisions.
Elements of the style reflected in the gates include the textured stucco finish over
masonry, terra cotta barrel tile roof, decorative arched entryway highlighted by a cast
stone panel with the initials, LS.

The Lakeshore Gates represents one of the most elaborate examples of boom period
subdivision gates remaining in Jacksonville. The use of decorative subdivision gates,
towers, and fountains, usually reflecting a common design theme, became a popular
way during the Florida Land Boom to define and differentiate the numerous
competing residential developments mushrooming across the state during the 1920’s.
Because the land boom was of relatively short duration and ended so abruptly,
subdivision gates in many cases became the only physical manifestations of real
estates dreams. Later becoming the victim of right-of-way expansion as well as
suffering from deterioration due to lack of maintenance, many of Florida’s 1920 era
subdivision gates, towers, and fountains have disappeared. Examples of the few
remaining 1920’s subdivision gates remaining in Jacksonville include San Jose
Estates, (San Jose Boulevard at North Christopher Point Road) Venetia (Ortega
Boulevard), Kelnepa (Kelnepa Drive at Old San Jose Boulevard), and Glynea off
Atlantic Boulevard between Pottsburg Creek and Silversmith Creek.

7. Its suitability for preservation.

[n utilizing this criterion, it has been the practice of the Planning and Development
Department to evaluate proposed landmarks based on evidence of significant exterior
alterations that have negatively impacted character-defining features, as well as
represent alterations difficult, costly, or impossible to reverse. Further, the degree
and nature of any exterior deterioration, as well as the evidence of long term and
potentially on-going neglect are also a factor in evaluating potential landmarks for
their suitability for preservation or restoration. Although lacking consistent on-going
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maintenance until recently, as well as being close to a busy intersection, the gates are
in reasonably good condition.

Most of the deterioration evident was stucco damage and stress cracks, as well as
damaged or missing barre] tiles. The missing or damaged tiles on the gable tops of
the faux towers have allowed moisture penetration which has weakened mortar joints.
Other original elements such as the ten gas lamps have also been removed over the
years. The single tall monument on the parcel northwest of the gates was originally
part of a fountain that flowed from the central shaft into the triangular pool now used
as a planter. Although located on public right-of-way, the gates and surrounding
grounds are currently maintained by local property owners, under the direction of the
Lake Shore Area Preservation Society. The two smaller arches that flank both sides
of Bayview Road appear to be in the best shape, along with the fountain/planter at the
intersection of Bayview Road, Appleton Street, and Blanding Boulevard.

The more prominent gateway in the center of the wide boulevard separating the travel
lanes on both sides of Bayview Road has suffered the most deterioration. In
particular the gable caps of the faux towers fronting the west side of Bayview Road
appear to be more deteriorated as evident by cracks, loose bricks, and loss of barrel
tiles. Tiles that topped the long arms or buttresses connecting the pair of towers to
the shorter arch to the east are damaged or missing. The society has recently initiated
repairs to the gates to ensure their continued preservation. Currently, the work has
involved stucco repairs and repainting, with further stabilization and the installation
of barrel tiles planned in the near future.
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9. Major Bibliographical References

Bibliography

(Crite the books, articles, and other sources used in preparing this form on one or more continuation sheet

PLEASE SEE ATTACHED CONTINUATION SHEETS

10. Geographical Data

|
AN T LD E

Acreage of Property

UTM References
(Place additional references on a continuation sheet.)

AL ULLLL D WL sl L e L

JENanN
[T

[:] See contlnuatlon sheet

Verbal Boundary Description
(Descnbe the boundaries of the property on a continuation sheet )

Boundary Justification
(Explain why the boundaries were selected on a continuation sheet.)

Parcels that contains the Lake Shore Subdivision Gates

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitle _Joel McEachin, City Planner Manager - Historic Preservation
oraanization Jacksonville Planning and Development Department Date December 10.2008
street & number Suite 600, The Florida Theatre Building, 128 East Forsyth _ telephone (904) 630-1891

| citvor town Jacksonville state Florida __ zi0 code 32202

12. Property Owner

name Jacksonville Department of Public Works
street & number 10 Floor-Ed Ball Building 214 North Hogan Street telephone (904) 255-8707
citv or town Jacksonville state Florida zip code 32202

Exhibit 1
Page 41 of 57
City of Jacksonville

Landmark, Landmark Site, or Historic District
Nomination Form Continuation Sheet

9-1 - Major Bibliographical References — Lake Shore Subdivision Gates
Books and Articles

Brook, William, Editor. From Saddlebays to Satellites, A History of Florida Methodism.
(Florida Annual Conference of Methodist Churches, 1969).

Carter, Edwin Clarence, ed., The Territorial Papers of the United States. Vol. XXII, The
Territory of Florida. 1821 - 1824: 1956.

Cates, Rosalie. “Westside — Logging Trails”, Bargain Finder, Volume 1, Issue 11, April
26,1988, p. 2.

Crooks, James B. Ph.D. Jacksonville After the Fire, 1901 — 1919, A New South City.
Jacksonville, Fl: University of North Florida Presses, 1991.

Davis, T. Frederick. History of Early Jacksonville and Vicinity, 1513 - 1924. St.
Augustine: The Record Company, 1924.

Ferguson, Nadine. “Lake Shore Church of Christ” The Southern Genealogist’s Exchange
Society Quarterly. Vol. 46, #196, December, 2005, pp. 16 & 17.

Gallagher, Charles, Ph.D. Cross & Crozier, The History of the Diocese of Saint
Augustine. (Jacksonville: The Diocese of St. Augustine, 1999).

Gannon, Michael, Editor, A New History of Florida. “Fortune and Misfortune: The
Paradoxical Twenties”:by William W. Rogers. (Gainesville, F1: University Press of
Florida, 1996), pp.290 - 298.

Gold, Pleasant Daniel Gold. History of Duval County. St. Augustine: The Record
Company, 1928.

Jones, William M. A Report on the Site of Camp Finegan, A Confederate Stronghold,
Duval County, Florida. Unpublished, 1959.

Jones, William M. Old Gravely Hill- Duval County, Florida. Unpublished Paper,
1992.

McAlester, Virginia & Lee. A Field Guide to American Houses. New York: Alfred
A. Knopf, 1984.

Martin, Richard A. and Daniel L. Schafer. Jacksonville’s Ordeal by Fire, A Civil
War History. Jacksonville, Florida: Florida Publishing Company, 1984.
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Mulvihill, Francis J. “Street Names for Subdivisions”, The Florida Engineer and
Contractor. April, 1926,

Rogers, Jonathan. “History is Par for Hyde Park Golf Course”, The 10-4-5 Express,
January 22, 1998, p. 14

Temple, Robert M. Jr. Florida Flame: A History of the Florida Conference of the
United Methodist Church. (Commission of Archives and History, Florida Conference
United Methodist Church, 1987), p.390.

Ward, James Robertson. Old Hickory’s Town, An [llustrated History of Jacksonville.
Jacksonville: Old Hickory’s Town, Inc., 1985.

Wood, Wayne W. Jacksonville's Architectural Heritage: Landmarks for the Future.
Jacksonville: University of North Florida Press, 1989.

Works Projects Administration, Historical Records Survey, Spanish Land Grants in

Florida, Volume 1V, Confirmed Claims, Tallahassee, Florida: State Library Board,
May, 1941.

Miscellaneous Sources:

Duval County Courthouse,

Lackawanna, Plat Book 4, p. 66, 1911 & Lackawanna Town Site, Plat Book 4, p. 79,
1912.

Johnson & Hyde’s Subdivision, Plat Book 3, p. 16 1908; Cedar Springs, Plat Book 4, p.
22, 1911 ; Hyde Park, and Plat Book 12, p. 75, 1926.

Lake Side Park, Plat Book 3, p. 11, 1908.
Lake Shore Drive Lots, Plat Book 8, p. 27, 1923
Lake Shore Estates, Sec. A, Plat Book 13, p. 61, 1928.

Lake Shore Section 1; Section 2; Section 3; Section 4; Section 5; Section 6; Section 7;
Section 8; & Section A, Lake Shore Estates Plat Book 13, 1925

Riverdale Gardens, Bk. 17, pp. 9, 9A, & 9B, 1941.
Cedar Hills Estates, Plat Books 27-31.
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Historic Property Associates, Inc. Historic Property Survey of the San Marco Area of
Jacksonville. (St. Augustine, Florida: Historic Property Associates, Inc., 1990).

History of Lake Shore Baptist Church, Unpublished document, c. 1993.

Hollomon, James A.  Florida Yearbook and Almanac, 1912, Compilation of
Authoritative Data on the States Resources and Industries. Jacksonville, Fl.

Jacksonville City Directories,
1907-1912, 1919, 1925

Lake Shore Woman’s Club. E-mail communication from Carla Bathurst with Lake Shore
Area Preservation Society, December 8, 2008.

Oral Interview — James Buck, August 11, 2008 .
Newspapers

The Florida Times Union

May 14, 1911, p. 22.

January 18, 1925

February 8, 1925

March 15, 1925

May 9, 10, 13, 20, 1925

November 21, 1999

Westside News, October 25, 1997, p. 1-W
Westside News, March 24, 1999, 1-W
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13. Additional Documentation
Submut the following items with the completed form:

Continuation Sheets (All Information on continuation sheets must be typed. Sheets should have the name and address of property
at top, be labeled with the appropriate application heading, and be numbered)

Maps
A copy of a USGS map (7.5 or 15 minute senes) Do not write upon or attach labels to this map.

A Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous resources.

Drawings (If avallable)
Current elevations, floorplans, etc.
Historic elevations floorplans, etc.

Photographs
Representative black and white photographs of the property.
(Do not write upon or attach permanent labels to the photographs.)

List all property owners within 350’ of the proposed landmark or landmark site.
List all contributing and non-contributing properties in the proposed historic district.

Attach proof of publication for the JHPC public hearing.
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LAKE SHORE AREA PRESERVATION SOCIETY, INC.

P.0. Box 7275, Jacksonville, FL 32238

July 13,2008

Mitchel Weiss, Chairman

Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission
The Florida Theatre Building, Suite 600

128 East Forsythe Street

Jacksonwville, FL 32202

Dear Mr. Weiss;

My name is Carla Bathurst and | am the President of Lake Shore Area Preservation Society, Inc. |
recently contacted Mr. Joel McEachin regarding the gateway to our community in hopes of determining
the history, style, and architectural value of these four structures. 1initially contacted Mr. Warren Jones
who also referred me to Mr. McEachin.

I am writing this letter as a formal appeal or petition to the Commission to sponsor a designation of
this gateway as an architectural landmark worth preserving. The four stucco arches which represent the
Spanish Eclectic Style are on City property located on Bayview Road and Appleton Avenue and also on a
triangular piece of land including Blanding Boulevard. The smaller structure on the triangular lot used to
have lights and a fountain but | can not remember them working in all the years | have lived in the
neighborhood. The largest structure is beginning to deteriorate from the top due to vegetation growing
between the bricks where roofing tiles are missing. Mr. McEachin has informed me that these arches, as
well as the remaining San Jose Tower, are the most elaborate 1920’s subdivision gates remaining in
Jacksonville. He also feels they were built as part of the old Lake Shore Subdivision developed by Buck &
Buck Realty Company between 1925 and 1928.
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Our organization is grasping at ways to preserve our special neighborhood feature. Itis amazing to
me how many people all over the city say they know of these arches and have always admired them but
recognize they are in need of repair. | decided it would be prudent to get the history and then pursue
the historical value in order to raise funds or ask the City for assistance. | understand The Commission
meets on July 23" at 3:00 p.m. and | would be happy to attend and answer any questions to assist in
your decision. Thank you in advance for your consideration.

Sincerely,
Carla Bathurst
LAPS, President

carlabathurst@bellsouth.net
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November 21, 2008

Mr. Joey Duncan

Director

Jacksonville Department of Public Works
10" Floor, Ed Ball Building

214 North Hogan Street

Jacksonville, Florida 32202

Dear Mr. Duncan:

RE: Local Landmark Designation - Lakeshore Subdivision Gates & Old City Cemetery.

Pursuant to Chapter 307.104, the Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission had
previously approved motions to sponsor landmark designation applications for the Lakeshore
Subdivision Gates (Blanding Boulevard and Bay View Avenue) and the Old City Cemetery,
both owned by the City of Jacksonville. The Commission has instructed the Planning and
Development Department to prepare the applications and schedule the required public hearings.
Because of more pressing needs, the Planning and Development Department had not moved
forward on these landmark designations, but has agreed to prepare and forward an application
and recommendation for the Lakeshore Subdivision Gates to be addressed at the December 10,
2008 meeting. An application and report for the Old City Cemetery will be prepared for a
public hearing sometime in early 2009. The meeting on December 10, 2008 will be held in the
8™ Floor Conference Room, Ed Ball Building starting at 3:00 PM.

The request for Commission sponsorship of the landmark designation for the Lakeshore
Subdivision Gates was made to the Commission by members of the neighborhood. This group
is committed to the preservation and restoration of these 1920s era gates, which are a
significant visual and historic landmark of the Lakeshore community. Landmark site
designation for the Old City Cemetery was requested by the Honorable, Glorious J. Johnson,
Council Member-at-Large, Group 5. The Congregation Ahavath Chesed has also requested

landmark site designation for that part of Old City Cemetery under their ownership, which
represents the oldest Jewish cemetery in Florida.

Consistent with Chapter 307.104, the landmark designation process has public notice
requirements. First, all owners of real property within three hundred and fifty (350) feet of the
proposed Landmark will be notified of the hearings. Notice of the public hearings will also be
placed in the Financial News and Daily Record. A public notice signs will be posted along all
street sides of the properties announcing the Commission’ s consideration of the landmark
designation. Before the public hearing on landmark designation, the Commission will receive a

Planning and Development Department Floride Theatre Building, Suite &00, J ﬂn/(:
128 Bast Forsyth Street, Jacksonville, Florida 32202 ( 1
Telephone: 904.620.1904 Fax: 904.630.1701 E-mail: JaxPlanning.coj.net Where Tonda
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Joey Duncan

Director

Jacksonville Department of Public Works
November 21, 2008

Page 2

full application and report prepared by the Planning and Development Department. The

Commission will make an advisory recommendation which will be forwarded for consideration
and action by the City Council.

If designated, all construction activities affecting the exterior of buildings, structures, and its
immediate surroundings will need to be reviewed by the Commission for consistency with the
Secretary of the Interior's Standards for Rehabilitation. Routine maintenance or repairs

consistent with the Secretary of the Interior's Standards can be pre-approved by the Jacksonville
Planning and Development Department.

Please contact Mr. Joel McEachin, City Planner Manager - Historic Preservation, at 630-1891
if you have any questions regarding this letter or the designation process.

Sincerely,

IEE0 (fjeas

Mitchel Weiss,
Chairman

Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission

cc: Members, Jacksonville Historic Preservation Commission
Brad Thoburn, Director of Planning and Development
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_ JACKSONVlLLE HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

LM 08 02 -

The Jacksonville ‘HiEtoric“Presekvai‘ioii““c_:r:rmmiss_ibn will hold a Public -
Hearing, pursuant to Section 307.104, City: of Jacksonville Ordinance °
Code on Application No.: LM-08-02 regardlng the proposed designation’

of the -Lakeshore Subdivision Gates at the -intersection of Blanding

Boulevard and Bayvrew Hoad asa Crty of Jacksonvrlle Landmark - ‘as

noted below: @ .- _ . . - =
Date: -Wednesday, December 10 2008
Time; 3 00 P. M.
Place:" - Room 851~ -
P :‘8 Floor - - .
- Ed Ball Building

214 North Hogan Street ,
Jacksonwlle Florlda

Information concernlng the proposed desrgnatlon is on file with the
Jacksonville Historic  Preservation .- Commission and available for
inspection from 8:00 A."M. until 5:00 P. M. Monday through Friday at the
Offices of the Planning and Development Department, Suite 600, 128
-East Forsyth Street Jacksonwlle Flonda (904) 630- 1904

ALL PERSONS INTERESTED ARE.NOTIFIED - TO BE
PRESENT AT SAID TIME AND PLACE, AND.THEY MAY
BE  HEARD. WITH : RESPECT TO THE PROPOSED
DESIGNATION. -
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The Commission will make a recommendation as to whether the
referenced property should or should not be designated as a Local
Landmark. The recommendation will be forwarded to the Jacksonville

City Council for final action.

If a person decides to appeal a decision of the Jacksonville
Historic Preservation Commission with respect to any matter
considered at such meeting, he will need a record of the
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, he may need to
ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made,
which record includes the testimony and evidence upon

which the appeal is to be based. § 286.0106, Florida
Statutes
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IV.

PROOF OF PUBLICATION OF PUBLIC NOTICE
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FINANCIAL NEWS &

Daily Record PROOF OF PUBLICATION

(Published Daily Except Saturday and Sunday)
Jacksonville, Duval County, Flonida

STATE OF FLORIDA;

SS:
COUNTY OF DUVAL,

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared James F. Bailey, Jr., who on
oath says that he 1s the Publisher of INANCIAL NEWS and DAILY RECORD, a daily
(except Saturday and Sunday) newspaper published at Jacksonville, in Duval County,
Florida; that the atrached copy of advertisement, being a

Notice of Public Hearing on Application to Designate a City of

Jacksonville Historic Landmark

in the matter of__Lakeshore Subdivision Gates

in the

Court, of Duval County, Flonida, was published
in said newspaper in the issues of November 26, 2008

Affiant further says that the said FINANCIAL NEWS and DAILY RECORD is a newspaper
at Jacksonville, in sard Duval County, Flonda, and that the said newspaper bas heretofore
been continuously published in said Duval County, Florida, each day (except Saturday and
Sunday) and has been entered as second class matter at the post office in Jacksonville, in
said Duval County, Florda, for a period of one year next preceding the first publication of
the artached copy of advertisement; and affiant further says that he has neither paid nor

promused any person, firm or corporation any discount, rebate, commussion or refund for the
purpose of securing this advertisement for publication in said newSgaper.

/il

Sworn to and subscribed b&ore me this 25 2008

ANGELA CAMPBELL
Notary Pubhic, State of Florida
My comm, exp. Aps. 10, 2009

Comm. No. DD 398465 Notary Signature
Angela Campbell
Notary Public
seal James F Bailey, Jr. personally known to me DD398465

peL

NOI‘ICE OF P]JBLIC HEARING ON

-APPLICATION.TO CONSIDER THE

BLAND]NG BOULEVARD AND
. BAYVIEW ROAD, ASA -
CITY OF JACKSONVILLE
HISTORIC LANDMARK : -

NOTICE IS HEREBY.GIVEN ﬂ:ston .
- the 10th day of Decernber, 2008A.D at -
- 3:00 p.m., the Jacksouville Historic Preser-
vation Commission’of the City of Jack- '
sonville will hiold & Public Hearing iri Room _,
851, 8th floor, Ed Ball Building, 214 ] Norﬂx
Hogan Street;’ gac‘.ksonvn]le, for the con-<
gideration of reeumﬁlendmg the Labahme
-Subdivision Gates-at the mtemecﬁnn of
Blanding Bouleva!d 'end Ba'yvmw Roed, a8 -~
a City of Jacksunvﬂle Landmm'k,
pursusnt to {qcksonmlle Ordmam:e Code
307.1 [ A

"This’ applwatum is bemg aponsored by )
~ the Jacksanvﬂle Historic Preservahon
Cumm:smon. "Acopy of the apphcaﬁan may
be mmmed in the'Offices of the Hannmg
and Development Department. Smte 600, "
Florida Thentre B\nldmg, IZB East
Pursyth S'a'eel:, Jackmnville, F’hmda 904) *
630-1904,"All iriterested parties are noti-
ﬁedtobepresentnndwﬂlbeheaxdatthe
Pubhc ‘Hearing.
Dated this 26th dey of November 2008

Chairiaan )
i aclnwnvﬂle Historic Presemhon .
Commission
. Gityof Jacksonville
Nov. 26 ~ - 00(08-11467)
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V.

LIST OF PROPERTY OWNERS LOCATED
WITHIN THREE HUNDRED AND FIFTY FEET
OF THE PROPOSED LANDMARK SITE
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}ROWN SHOPPING CENTER
LLC,
~030 SEASIDE DR
—ARASOTA, FL 34242-2523
LM-08-02

ISPEJO CESAR,
37 1ST AVE #2L
LINDEN, NJ 07036

M-08-02

!

BOGERS RICHARD C SR,

733 APPLETON AVE
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32210-3205
' M-08-02

ESPEJO CESAR,

37 1ST AVE #2L
INDEN, NJ 07036

LM-08-02

. /AYES TRUMIE ESTATE,

4750 APPLETON AVE
CKSONVILLE, FL 32210-3206

LM-08-02

j;)LEMAN DOUGLAS,

4747 COLONIAL AV
'ACKSONVILLE, FL 32210-4103
&-08-02

"INSON JENNIFER,
. 144 BAYVIEW RD
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32210-4202
' v-oe-oz
KISTNER ROBERT A,
. 332 APPLETON AV
sACKSONVILLE, FL 32210
LM-08-02

i
CROSBY HIRAM T 1l & JUDY E
T/IC,
: 362 LINJOHN RD
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32084
| -08-02
( RTIZ ROSA | & NERY R,
5578 ORTEGA PARK BV
~\CKSONVILLE, FL 32244

L.1-08-02

|

SPORT NOBLES
CONSTRUCTION INC,

P O BOX 1203

MIDDLEBURG, FL 32050
LM-08-02

FORBACH ANN M,

4747 APPLETON AV
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32210-3205
LM-08-02

SMITH MILFORD DURWOOD
TRUST,

3116 MOODY AVE

ORANGE PARK, FL 32065-6807
LM-08-02

MONTUORI STEPHEN &
KELLEY A,

2105 BAYVIEW RD
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32210-4201
LM-08-02

FETZER CHARLES E ET AL,
2108 BLANDING BV
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32210-4102
LM-08-02

REIMERT ELEONORA,

5551 MORSE AV
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32244-3940
LM-08-02

MULDER TRUST,

9389 COXWELL LA
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32221-1382
LM-08-02

HANNA SAMIR KAMEL,

2135 BALNDING BV
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32210-4193
LM-08-02

DIXON LARRY W ET AL,

2143 BAYVIEW RD
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32210-4255
LM-08-02

SMITH ISABELLE DIMITY,

4636 APPLETON AV
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32210-3204
LM-08-02

CHRISTENSON DANIEL &
KIMBERLEE,

4189 PALMER AV
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32210
LM-08-02

SAINT MARTIN LAND TRUST,
PO BOX 442043
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32244
LM-08-02

SMITH CHARLES FOSTER JR &
TERESA A,

4645 APPLETON AVE
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32210-3203
LM-08-02

SMITH BARBARA,
RR 2 BOX 2183
DUSHORE, PA 18614
LM-08-02

BLOENA BRIAN & LUCRISHIA,
2111 BAYVIEW RD
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32210-4201
LM-08-02

NORTON SCOTT A ET AL,
2366 EAGLES NEST RD
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32246
LM-08-02

DECKER BEATRICE & MICHAEL
J,

4742 APPLETON AV
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32210
LM-08-02

FEIERSTEIN VERNON A &
KATHLEEN B,

4636 PALMER AV
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32210-3222
LM-08-02

SMITH JIMMIE C ET AL,

4740 COLONIAL AVE
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32210-4104
LM-08-02

GROVES DALE & PATRICIA,
2126 BLANDING BV
JACKSONVILLE, FL 32210-4102
LM-08-02
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